

SAGE PARTNER CLOUD

Study Guide

sage University

Your Sage training resource

Important Notice

The Sage partner and their colleagues and consultants agree to the suggested Azure competencies. The Sage partner and their colleagues and consultants agree that Sage will not be held responsible for maintaining and securing the customer's environment.

The course materials provided are the property of The Sage Group plc or its licensors ("Sage"). Please do not copy, reproduce, modify, distribute, or disburse without express consent from Sage.

This material is provided as a general guidance for informational purposes only. Accordingly, Sage does not provide advice per the information included. The use of this material is not a substitute for the guidance of a lawyer, tax, or compliance professional. When in doubt, please consult your lawyer, tax, or compliance professional for counsel. This material is provided on an "as is" basis. Sage makes no representations or warranties of any kind, express or implied, about the completeness or accuracy of this training materials. Whilst Sage may make changes to this training materials at any time without notice, Sage makes no commitment to update the training materials every time Sage's products are updated.

The Sage product(s) described herein is/are governed by the terms and conditions per the Sage End User License Agreement ("EULA") or other agreement that is provided with or included in the Sage product(s). Nothing in this document supplements, modifies, or amends those terms and conditions.

© 2021 The Sage Group plc or its licensors. All rights reserved. Sage, Sage logos, and Sage product and service names mentioned herein are the trademarks of The Sage Group plc or its licensors. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.



Sage Partner Cloud

Sage 200 Professional

Help us Improve our Courseware

Training Guide Version: 2

Your comments are important to us. Please contact us by emailing ukisageuniversity@sage.com, Attention: Training Admin

Please note:

Every effort has been made to ensure that the information provided is accurate, up-to-date, and complete, but no guarantee is made to that effect. URLs and additional resources are continuously changing. Because the software is customizable in several ways, the language used in this guide may be different from what you 'see' when you work with your product.

Table of Contents

Introduction	6
Learning Objectives	6
Working With This Manual	6
Application Software Versions	7
Certification Assessments	7
Lesson 1 – Sage Provisioning Portal	9
About Sage Provisioning Portal	
Basic Screen Elements	11
User Roles	
Onboarding and User Assignment Workflows	17
Lesson 2 – Onboarding to Sage Partner Cloud	21
Adding Products to a Partner	21
Accessing the Portal	22
Lesson 3 – Partner Operator: Setting up Subscriptions	25
Setup Process	26
Assigning an Azure Subscription	
Lesson 4 – Partner Operator: Managing Customers	40
Adding a New Customer	
Adding a New Customer Site	44
Adding and Assigning Users	49
Accessing and Opening Sage 200 Professional	54
Lesson 5 – Partner Operator: Site Maintenance	59
Backup Policy	60
Backing up a Database for Sage 200	61
Backing up a Site	61
Restoring a Database Backup for Sage 200	61
Deleting a Database for Sage 200	62
Restoring a Site Backup	62
Repairing a Site	63
Changing a Virtual Machine Size	63
Recover Files From Azure Virtual Machine Backup	63
Lesson 6 – Partner Operator: Managing Additional Azure SQL Servers	64

Managing Additional Azure SQL Servers	
Sage Partner Cloud - Answer Keys	73
Appendix	75
Learning Outcomes	75
FAQ and Program Information	75
Microsoft Azure Training Resources	
Two-factor Identification	
Creating a User in Azure	
Giving Users Permissions	
About Execution Policies	
Change the Execution Policy	
Azure PowerShell Command Line	
Office Deployment Tool	
Windows Update	96
Selecting a Mode to Run Applications	

Introduction

This book has been designed to provide you with information for the Sage Partner Cloud for Sage 200 product line.

Learning Objectives

After completing this Sage Partner Cloud study guide, you will be able to:

- Explain what the Sage Provisioning Portal is
- Explain the basic screen elements in the Sage Provisioning Portal
- Explain the onboarding process to the Sage Partner Cloud solution
- Explain the workflow for creating a new partner account
- Access the Sage Provisioning Portal
- Assign and setup an Azure subscription in the Sage Provisioning Portal
- Add a new customer account and site in the Sage Provisioning Portal
- Explain how a customer initiates the invitation process for adding and assigning new users
- Explain how the customer accesses the Sage 200 solution.
- Explain how to set up product registration for Sage 200.
- Explain how to work with backups and how to repair a site.
- Explain how to manage additional Azure SQL servers in the Sage Provisioning Portal

Working With This Manual

You may come across some of the following icons to make your learning experience more interesting and visual:

	Important Information / Important Note / Additional Information	Item where caution and attention are required, or additional insight and information is provided.
	Exercise	Your opportunity to practice a concept.
	End of Exercise	Indicates the end of an exercise.
\checkmark	Check Your Knowledge	Review questions at the end of a lesson to check your understanding and ability to implement concepts.
÷	Summary	Overview of the most important items covered in a section or lesson.
	End of Lesson	The end of the lesson.

Application Software Versions

Release Year

This study guide has been developed for Sage 200 Professional Release 1

Certification Assessments

Research has shown that in today's economy it is more important than ever for individuals to obtain solid technical skills and certified proof of their knowledge to secure the best job opportunities. Certification is becoming a requirement for many and the demand for certified professionals has dramatically increased.

Once you have completed a Sage training course, we would therefore encourage you to take the Sage competency assessment. Assessments are offered in English and in an online environment.

Once you complete the requirements to become certified, as a benefit of your certification, we will periodically place partner update training and/or required certification maintenance training and exam packages on your transcript. You will be notified via email of the availability of these packages. We will send periodic reminders up to the due date for all certification maintenance exam requirements.

Certification maintenance: After initial certification, an annual renewal is due to maintain this certification. Certification maintenance packages will be placed on your transcript for completion up to once yearly. We will notify you of the requirements and send periodic reminders up to the due date via email.

Visit <u>www.sageu.com</u> to take your assessment.

Sage Provisioning Portal

Lesson 1 – Sage Provisioning Portal

Learning Outcomes

This lesson provides an overview of the Sage Provisioning Portal, including an explanation about the basic screen elements, and how user accounts are linked to one or more user roles which define access rights to the Portal features and information.

Learning Objectives

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

- A. Explain what the Sage Provisioning Portal is
- B. Explain the three types of organizations in the Portal
- C. Explain the hierarchy of elements in the Portal and how they work together
- D. Explain the basic screen elements
- E. Explain the user roles

About Sage Provisioning Portal

The Sage Provisioning Portal is the tool you use to manage online subscriptions and services for Sage products, on the Sage Partner Cloud. The products are deployed on sites in the Portal. When a customer orders a new subscription to a product, you must provision a new site with the required product parts, licenses, and entitlements to match the order.

There are three types of organization in the Portal: operating company, partner, and customer.

Each organization contains users with assigned roles. The data and functionality that each user can access depends on the operating company, the product deployed on the site, the status of the site, and the role assigned to the user's Portal account.

Users with appropriate rights can create new sites and manage existing sites and products from the Portal. This includes adding and removing Portal users, uploading bacpacs, and creating backups.

Hierarchy of Elements in the Portal

There is only one Sage Provisioning Portal URL: <u>https://www.sageerponlineservices.com/</u>

The information available on the Sage Provisioning Portal differs based on roles. For example, the Sage Operator sees more than a Partner Operator, and a Customer Operations Agent can only see their own customer/site record.

The process flow shown below explains the hierarchy of elements in the Sage Provisioning Portal, and how the Sage Operator, Partner Operator, Customer Operations Agent, and Users work together.

Sage Operator creates new partner accounts



Partner Operator creates new accounts and sites for a customer Customer Operations Agent adds users to the customer record then assigns users to the site

Sage Provisioning Portal

Basic Screen Elements

Each screen in the Portal has several tool bars and a main work area where information is displayed.

You can find below a full explanation of each of the options available in the Sage Provisioning Portal.

		Search Q Deter Donaldison -
	🖬 Dashboard 👻 📴 Organisations 👻	11 Management 👻
		0
	Learning Services	Active a \ominus Operations
	Name: Learning Services	Sage Account Id: 00590051
	Internal Name: fh8K87Cmp0	Billing business model: Billing to partner
	Business unit: No	Try and buy business unit: No
Da	Address 1: North Park	Address 2: Newcastle Upon Tyne
	City: Gosforth	Region: Tyne And Wear
	Postal code: NE13 9AA	Country: United Kingdom
	Comments:	
	Contacts	
	Users	Adduser
	- Products	
	* 🖹 Subscriptions	Assign subscription
	• 😥 Customers	Add outloner
	sage	@ 2021 The Sage Group plo or its licensors. All rights reserved. Partner area Service Current Status About

Sage Provisioning Portal logo

Click to return to your default screen from anywhere in the Portal. If you can access more than one site, your default screen is the Site Summary screen. If you can access one site only, your default screen is the Site Details screen.

Search

Enter keywords and click the Search icon to list all Sage Provisioning Portal records containing the keywords.

My Profile

Displays your roles, the date of your previous log in, and the log out link.

Help

Opens context sensitive help.

Dashboard

Expands a drop-down menu that opens operation, and site dashboards. Dashboards provide an overview and a set of shortcuts for you to perform activities.

Site Dashboard: The Site dashboard allows you to view site information, export site information, add a site, work with bacpacs, assign a user to a site, unassign a user from a site, set site administration rights, amend a site, and change the status of a site.

To display the Site Details screens, click on a site Name. Detailed information about the site is displayed.

There are several sections on this screen. Site header, Operations, Infrastructure, Database servers, Databases, Users, and the Modules panel.

Site header

Provides detailed information about the site.

Operations

The Operations that are available depend on the current screen in the portal, your user role, and the product deployed on the site. Some options available are Amend, Repair, Restore, Suspend, Lock, Backup, Bacpacs, and Change VM size.

The table below shows the operations available and the state of the VM + data disks and Databases.

SPP Operation		Sage 300	Sage 100	Site status when completed	Rollback operation
	VM + data disk	DBs	VM + data disk		
Suspend	stop	no action	stop	Suspended	Resume
Resume	start	no action	start	Ready	-
Shelve	no action because the vm is already stopped	export DBs as bacpac files and delete DBs from SQL Server	no action	Shelved	Unshelve
Unshelve	no action	Create SQL Server databases from bacpac files	no action	Suspended	-
Delete	delete	no action	delete	-	-
Lock	no action	no action	no action	Locked	
Unlock	no action	no action	no action	Ready	-

The process to delete a Site is: Ready > Suspended > Shelved > Deleted

A Suspended Site displays Restore, Resume and Shelve operations.

A Shelved Site displays Unshelve and Delete operations.

A Fault Site displays the *Repair* operation.

A **Pending Acceptance** site displays the **Delete** operation.

Infrastructure Panel

Displays the Azure subscription Id, Storage account name, Internal name, Virtual machine name and Virtual machine size.

Database servers Panel

The Database servers panel displays the Azure SQL server name, the number of databases, Logins, Type, and the status of the database.

Sage Provisioning Portal

Databases Panel

Displays the name of the company, the name of the database, the Azure tier used for the database, current size percentage, the amount of used space and the total amount of space on the database, and the Actions available for the database.

Actions Field

Backup: The Backup icon performs a manual backup,

Restore: The Restore icon restores a database backup,

Connection string: The Connection String icon gets the connection string of the database,

Delete Database: The Delete Database icon deletes a database.

Users Panel

Displays the user's last name and first name, the user's email address, and the role assigned to the user.

It also displays the **Status** of the user. An **Inactive** status is a newly created user. **Active** indicates a user with a registered Sage ID account and **Active (Locked)** is a registered locked user.

The **Assignment status** can be **Assigned** which indicates that the user is assigned and can access the site or **Failed** where the process of assigning or unassigning the user has failed.

The Actions available are Lock or Unassign a user from the site.

The **Assign accountant** option allows an accountant to access the product deployed on a customer's site. The accountant cannot log in to Sage Provisioning Portal. You can assign an accountant to a site that has a Ready status.

The **Assign User** option allows you to assign an existing, active portal user to a site that has a Ready status.

Modules Panel

Displays the product parts that are deployed on the site. The product parts that are available depend on the product.

The **Amount** field displays the number of licenses for each product part and the capacity for the database. For some product parts, you cannot specify an amount.

Organisations

Expands a drop-down menu that opens a list of Users, Customers, and Partners. You can use the Organisations menu to select and manage an organisation type.

Users: From the User Summary screen, you can view user information, add a user, register a user, edit a user, lock, and unlock a user, and delete a user.

Customers: From the Customer summary screen, you can view customer information, add a customer, register a customer, edit a customer, lock, and unlock a customer, and delete a customer.

The Actions available are Audits and Processes.

To display the **Customer Details screen**, click on a Customer Name. Detailed information about the customer is displayed. There are several sections on this screen. Customer header, Operations, Customer data, Contacts data, Sites, and Users.

Partners: From the Partner Summary screen you can view partner information, add a partner, edit a partner, lock, and unlock a partner, and delete a partner.

To display the **Partner Details** screen, click on a Partner Name. There are several sections on this screen. Partner header, Operations, Contacts, Users, Products, Subscriptions, and Customers.

Management

Expands a drop-down menu that displays audits and product terms and conditions.

Quick Actions

Add Customer: Opens the New customer wizard. You must have rights to view this option.

Add Partner: Opens the New partner wizard. You must have rights to view this option.

Work Area

Displays Portal information. To view information in a section, click the Expand icon. To change the order in which information is displayed, click the arrow in the relevant column heading. To search for specific items, click the Filter icon in the relevant column heading, enter search words, and click Filter. To move between pages of results, click the navigation buttons at the bottom of the work area.

Footer

The information displayed here depends on the operating company.

Info Legal: Displays legal information.

Disclaimer: Displays disclaimer.

Partner Area: Opens your Sage Account Area log on page.

Service Current Status: Displays the status of the product.

Sage Provisioning Portal

Service Availability: Displays information about the service availability.

About: Displays the version number and the publication date of Sage Provisioning Portal.

User Roles

Sage Provisioning Portal user accounts are assigned one or more user roles. These roles determine what the users can access in the Portal. Menu options, buttons, and information are available based on the user's role.

To view the roles assigned to your account, click your name in the top-right corner of the page.

Role	What you can do in Sage Provisioning Portal
Sage Operations Agent	You are a Sage employee, fulfilling a particular Sage role in using the Portal.
Partner Administrator	You are an administrator user with the channel partner organization who performs billing and back office activities.
Partner Operations Agent	You are a channel partner employee who performs operational tasks for a customer, for example, create a backup or create a site.
Partner Support Agent	You are a channel partner employee who performs support activities for a customer, for example, review logs and answer billing queries. You have a high level of IT expertise and experience of on-premise deployments on customer sites.
Customer Administrator	You are an administrator user within the customer's organization.
Customer Operations Agent	You are a customer user who operates and manages users, version, and site credentials.
Customer User	You are a customer user who fulfils a function in the customer's organization, for example sales clerk.

Sage Provisioning Portal

Onboarding and User Assignment Workflows

The process flow shown below explains the onboarding and user assignment, for the Sage Partner Cloud solution.







Sage Provisioning Portal



Check Your Knowledge

Answer the following questions about the material covered in this lesson.

Short Answer

Write a short answer to the questions below.

1. What are the three types of organization in the Portal?

2. What is the process flow for the hierarchy of elements in the Sage Provisioning Portal?

Multiple Choice

Mark the correct answer(s) to the question below.

- 3. What icon do you select to add a new customer in the Sage Provisioning Portal?
 - A. _____ Add partner
 - B. ____ Add site
 - C. _____ Add user
 - D. ____ Add customer

ുട്ട് Summary

Sage Provisioning Portal is the interface you use to manage online subscriptions and services for Sage products. The products are deployed on sites in the Portal.

When a customer orders a new subscription to a product, you must provision a new site with the required product parts, licenses, and entitlements to match the order.

There are three types of organization in the Portal: operating company, partner, and customer.

Sage Provisioning Portal user accounts are linked to one or more user roles which define access rights to the Portal features and information.

Menu options, buttons, and information are displayed or hidden according to user roles. To view the roles assigned to your account, click your name in the top-right corner of the page. To view user roles assigned to another user, select Organisation, Users and then click the User Name.



End of Lesson

Lesson 2 – Onboarding to Sage Partner Cloud

Once a Partner requests access to participate in the Sage Partner Cloud through the Sage Provisioning Portal Service, a Sage Operator will start the Partner onboarding process.

- A Sage Operator will send a communication with links to Sage University for required training, as well as the Sage Partner Cloud Agreement.
- The Sage Operator will verify that the Sage Partner Cloud Certified Consultant training has been completed, and the Sage Partner Cloud Agreement has been submitted.
- Once the Sage Operator creates the account an invitation to register is sent to the Partner contact, who must read and agree to the Sage Provisioning Portal Service, Terms & Conditions upon their first log on.



Important Information

A new Sage Account is created using the email address provided during sign up.

Once the Sage Operator has entered the partner information in the Sage Provisioning Portal, a Sage Account Registration email is sent to the partner. The email will come to the same email address you gave during sign up and this email will not change, since it is used to create your account.

1. Click the "**Register your Sage Account**" link to register a Sage account. **Sage Account is formerly** *known as Sage ID.*



2. Enter a password, then click **Register**.



If a partner already has a Sage Account, they will register their existing Sage Account to this service. This is the same Sage Account used for Sage Partner Hub or Sage City.

- 3. You will receive a Verification Code that is sent to your email.
- 4. Enter the Sage Account Verification Code, then click Continue.
- 5. Upon completing the Sage Account registration, you will be redirected onto the Sage Provisioning Portal.

					🚺 Peter Donaldson 👻	?) Hulp
Dashboard • Drganisations •	👥 Management 👻					
						0
Partners					Export to Exce	
Name T	Contact name	T Contact email		Status		
Learning Services	Peter	And the second second second	01912943000	Active	Action 💌	
					1 - 1 of 1 items 🖉	
	C3					
sage	© 2021 The Sage Group plo	or its licensors. All rights reserved. Partner area	Service Current Status About			

6. You will receive an email confirming that your Sage Account has been registered.



You can add another level of security for your Sage Account by setting up two-factor identification. Sign in with your Sage Account, click Manage Account, and in the Two-Factor Authentication area, click Add. Follow the on-screen steps. See the Appendix for additional information on the Two-factor Identification.

Adding Products to a Partner

Partners can manage several products in the Sage Provisioning Portal. Before creating sites for customers, they need to be added to the partner record. The Sage Operator will assign the products that the partner is authorised for.

Accessing the Portal

Partner Operator

You can access the Sage Provisioning Portal through the following URL: <u>https://www.sageerponlineservices.com/</u>

Now that you have accessed the Sage Provisioning Portal, you can view the user roles assigned to your account.

Sage Provisioning Portal		Search Q	Peter Donaldson 👻 ?
🖬 Dashboard 👻 🗗 Organisations 👻 🏦 Ma	lansgement 👻		
			•
Learning Services		Active 📓 🕀	Operations
Name: Learning Services	Sage Account Id: 00590051		
Internal Name: fh8K87Cmp0	Billing business model: Billing to partner		
Business unit: No	Try and buy business unit: No		
Address 1: North Park	Address 2: Newcastle Upon Tyne		
City: Gosforth	Region: Tyne And Wear		
Postal code: NE13 9AA	Country: United Kingdom		
Comments:	Þ		
Contacts			
- L Users			Add user
Products			
▼ (Ē) Subscriptions			Assign subscription
- Customers			Add customer
sage	© 2023 The Sage Group plc or its licensors. All rights reserved. Partner area Service Current Status	About	

To view user roles assigned to your account, click your name in the top-right corner of the page. The roles are listed below your name. To view user roles assigned to another user, select **Organisations**, **Users** and then click the User **Name**.





Check Your Knowledge

Answer the following questions about the material covered in this lesson.

Short Answer

Write a short answer to the question below.

1. What are the two ways to access the Sage Provisioning Portal?

Multiple Choice

Mark the correct answer(s) to the question below.

- 2. What information is used to create a new Sage ID?
 - A. _____ Address B. _____ Email

 - C. ____ Name D. ____ Region



There are several steps to complete before you can start using the solution.

- 1. The Partner completes the onboarding process for the Sage Partner Cloud solution.
- 2. The Sage Operator creates the account for a partner.
- 3. Once the Sage Operator has entered the partner information in the Sage Provisioning Portal, a Sage ID Registration email is sent to the partner.
- 4. After completing the Sage Account registration, the partner will be redirected onto the Sage Provisioning Portal.
- 5. Once the site is created by the Sage Operator, the partner will receive an email confirming that their Sage Account has been registered.
- 6. The Sage Operator will then assign products to the partner.

You can access the Sage Provisioning Portal through the following URL: <u>https://www.sageerponlineservices.com/</u>



Lesson 3 – Partner Operator: Setting up Subscriptions

Learning Outcomes

This lesson explains how to assign an Azure subscription to your partner account, and how to set it up to make it available for site provisioning.

It is essential that, before you continue, you fully read and understand our article on AVD License Price Per User Access Plan Pricing here...

https://gb-kb.sage.com/portal/app/portlets/results/viewsolution.jsp?solutionid=210928085359643

Learning Objectives

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

- A. Explain how to assign an Azure subscription to your partner account
- B. Explain how to make the Azure subscription available for site provisioning

Setup Process

You can follow the process flow shown below when setting up an Azure subscription.



Subscriptions

You can find below a full explanation of each of the options available under the Subscriptions panel.

Subscriptions									Assign subscription
Azure subscription Id	Ŧ	Name	۲	Organisation	Ŧ	Region	т	Status	Actions
H 4 0 H 1	10 🔹 items pe	r page							No items to display 💍

Azure subscription Id : Your Azure subscription ID.

Name: A name to identify the subscription.

Organisation: Partner or customer name.

Region: The area in which the resources will be deployed.

Status:

Assigning: Assigning the subscription in the Sage Provisioning Portal.
Pending Setup: Subscription assigned to the Sage Provisioning Portal, but not configured yet.
Setting up: Subscription setup is on going.
Ready: The subscription is ready to be used.
Fault: Error when executing the Sage Provisioning Portal configuration.
Locking: Subscription in the process of lock.
Locked: Subscription not available for new site creation.
Unlocking: Subscription in the process of unlock.
Unassigning: Subscription in the process being unassigned from Sage Provisioning Portal.

Actions:

Assign subscription: Assign a partner Azure subscription.
Download subscription files: Click to download the configuration files.
Setup subscription: Click to execute Sage Provisioning Portal setup on the subscription.
Lock Subscription: Click to lock the subscription. It is not visible when creating a site.
Unlock: Click to unlock the subscription.
View Logs: Displays the logs for the subscription setup.
Re-send email: Click to send the email to the partner to download the files.
Unassign subscription: Click to unassign the subscription.

Assigning an Azure Subscription

There are several steps for the Partner Operator to complete to assign an Azure subscription in the Sage Provisioning Portal.

Partner Operator

First, the Partner Operator opens the partner account to assign the Azure subscription.

1. In the **Subscriptions** panel, click the **Assign subscription** option.

		۹ 👤	Peter Donaldson 👻 ?
🖬 Dashboard 👻 🗄 Organisations 👻 🏦 Management 👻			
			•
Learning Services	Active	ie Ø	Operations
Name: Learning Services	Sage Account Id: 00590051		
Internal Name: fh8K87Cmp0	Billing business model: Billing to partner		
Business unit: No	Try and buy business unit: No		
Address 1: North Park	Address 2: Newcastle Upon Tyne		
City: Gosforth	Region: Tyne And Wear		
Postal code: NE13 9AA	Country: United Kingdom		
Commenta:			
V 💽 Contacts			
👻 🔔 Users			Add user
▼ 🛱 Products			
• 🖹 Subscriptions			Assign subscription

2. In the Assign new Azure Subscription screen, enter the Identifier (Azure Subscription Id), Name, Owner, Region, and then click Save.

ldentifier		Name	
Owner		Region	
LS Partner	~	Select one	~



Important Note

The Azure subscription Id is provided by your Microsoft Cloud Solution Provider (CSP).

3. The new subscription now appears under the **Subscriptions** panel, with a **Pending Setup** status. Check your email for further instructions.

Azure subscription Id	Name T	Internal name 🛛 🔻	Organisation 7	Region 1	Status	
1817bcb0-129b-4c0e-8573-ecfc44fb0ae1	UK Partner Azure Subscription	meQFa9tDHW	Learning Services	North Europe	PendingSetup	

Steps to Setup an Azure Subscription

You must follow these steps to setup an Azure Subscription:

- 1. Download the required file (PowerShell script) from the email received or through the Sage Provisioning Portal.
- 2. Confirm that you have read how to configure the subscription information.
- 3. Save a copy of the ConfigureSageADIdentityzip file on your computer.
- 4. Execute the files to setup the subscription. You will run PowerShell scripts through the Azure Cloud Shell.
- 5. Set up the subscription in the Sage Provisioning Portal.
- 6. You will then receive an email informing you that the subscription has been setup, and that you can now access the Sage Provisioning Portal.



Important Information

You must download the required file and confirm that you have read the subscription information before you can proceed to setup the subscription.

Setting up an Azure Subscription

Partner Operator

Once the Partner Operator has assigned a new subscription to their partner record, an email is sent to the partner with instructions to setup the subscription.

1. Review the steps in the email to grant delegated management permissions for the subscription to Sage, then click the link in step 1.



2. Review the **How to configure the subscription** information, then select **I have read the information above.** Click **Continue.**

sage Provisioning Portal		Search	🔍 🧕 Sandra Williams 👻 🤔
🔛 Dashboard 👻 🔁 Organisations 👻 🏦 Ma	anagement 👻		
🖹 Sandra Williams			0
this permission at any time via the Azure management portal. After you have downloaded the files, please run the PowerSitell script t	ss from the Sage Provisioning Portal by clicking on the "setup" icon next to your subscri		
sage	© 2015 Says Software, Inc. All Rights Reserved. Pachers' area	[About	

3. The ConfigureSageADIdentity.zip file will now download. Save a copy of the file on your computer.



You can also download the PowerShell script through the following method: In the Subscriptions panel, go to the Actions column, then click on the Download subscription files icon.



4. Go to the **ConfigureSageADIdentity.zip** file on your computer and extract the file.

For the next step, you have must execute the files to setup the subscription. You will run the PowerShell script through the Azure Cloud Shell.

Azure Cloud Shell

Azure Cloud Shell is an interactive, authenticated, browser-accessible shell for managing Azure resources. It offers the flexibility of being able to choose the shell experience that best suits the way you work, Bash or PowerShell.

To learn more about Azure Cloud Shell go to:

https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/azure/cloud-shell/overview?view=azps-4.8.0

To run the PowerShell scripts through the Cloud Shell, perform the following steps:

- 1. Go to <u>http://portal.azure.com/</u>
- 2. Sign in to your **Microsoft Azure** account.



Important Information

You must log in using your Administrator credentials for your Azure subscription.

3. Select the **Directory and subscription**.

Microsoft Azure		12 Exemply material and deal (Sing) 🛛 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓 🖓 👘									Give.com		
	Azure service	Azure services									Directo	ry + subsci	ription \times
	Create a resource	? Subscriptions	Service Bus	Claud services (classic)	102. databases	Vitual machines.	Abure Active Derectory	SQL servers	Records groups	After a service at	Favorites	Alt Directories	Plate P
	Recent resou	irces											
	Name				Туре				Last Viewed				R
	9					rvice (classic)			a day ago				
	9					rvice (classic)			a day ago 2 days ago				意
	-					has Namespace			2 days ago				
	2					Lu Namespace			5 days ago				弁
	-				SQL-dat				5 days ago				*
					SQL dat				2 weeks ago				ж
					SQL MP				2 weeks app				*
					SQL ela	tic pool			2 veeks age				н
						iche for Redis			2 veeks ago				*
	[94]				Testura	e group			3 weeks ago				м
					Cloud st	rvice (classic)			3 weeks ago				+
	Navigate		(2)							l			*
	* Solosotpti	ions		fecorse Buorbe		All restricts		245 0	ashboard				\$
1													

4. Click on the Cloud Shell icon.

Azure services								Cloud Shell
+ 🛉		4			٨	Test.		\rightarrow
Create a Subscriptions resource	Service Bus	Cloud services (classic)	SQL databases	Virtual machines	Azure Active Directory	SQL servers	Resource groups	More services
Recent resources								
Name			Type				Last Viewed	
4			Cloud set	vice (classic)			a day ago	
4			Cloud se	vice (classic)			a day ago	
4			Cloud set	vice (dassic)			2 days ago	
x			Service 8	is Namespace			5 days ago	
x			Senice B	us Namespace			5 days ago	
			SQL data	base			6 days ago	
			SQL data	base			2 weeks ago	
0.			SQL serv	ie)			2 weeks ago	
٠			SQL elast	ic pool			I weeks ago	
-			Ature Ca	the for Redix			2 weeks ann	

×

5. If this is the first time you've started Cloud Shell in Azure you will see this screen. Click on 'Create Storage' to continue. Once the process has completed (it may take a few minutes) move on to Step 6.

You have no sto Azure Cloud Shell requires an Azure f This will create a new storage account for you and Q	file share to persist files. Learn more
* Subscription Azure subscription 1	Show advanced settings
Create storage	Close

6. From the drop-down menu select PowerShell.



Microsoft Azure	٩	Search resources, service	es, and docs (G+;)						E 🛱
	Azure services								
	Create a Subscrip	ptions Service Bus	Cloud services (classic)	SQL databases	Virtual machines	Ature Active Directory	SQL servers	(iii) Resource groups	
	Recent resources								
	Name			Type				Last Viewed	
	4			Cloud se	rvice (classic)			a day ago	
	4			Cloud se	rvice (classic)			a day ago	
	9			Cloud se	rvice (classic)			2 days ago	
	Ξ			Service B	us Namespace			5 days ago	
	×			Service B	us Namespace			5 days ago	
				SQL data	base			6 days ago	
	•			SQL data	base			2 weeks ago	
	e .			SQL serv	RCS			2 weeks ago	
	*			SQL elast	ic pool			2 weeks ago	
	v.			Azure Ca	che for Redis			2 weeks ago	

7. Click Confirm, to Switch to PowerShell in Cloud Shell.

8. A PowerShell command prompt will appear.

Microsoft Azure		P Search resources, services, and docs (G+/)										
	Azure servic	Azure services										
	+	•		2	101		4					
	Create a resource	Subscriptions	Service Bus	Cloud services (classic)	SQL databases	Virtual machines	Azure A Directi					
	Recent reso	urces										
	Name				Туре							
	4				Cloud se	rvice (classic)						
	4		Cloud service (classic)									
	4	6										
					Service Bus Namespace							
	1				Service B	us Namespace	ce					
	0				SQL data	base						
	8				SQL data	base						
	α.				SQL serv	br.						
	-				SQL elas	ic pool						
					Azure Ca	che for Redis						
PowerShell V () ? () [() () Requesting a Cloud Shell.Succeeded. Connecting terminal MOTD: Save files to \$home/clouddrive VERBOSE: Authenticating to Azure VERBOSE: Building your Azure drive PS /home/: >	for persistence across sess	ions			I	iontainer button	;					
9. Click on the Upload/Download files icon.

PowerShell ∨ ① ? ◎ 🙀 🖽 {} D	
Requesting a Cloud Shell.Succ [*] Upload/Download files Connecting terminal	
MOTD: Save files to \$home/clouddrive for persistence across sessions	
VERBOSE: Authenticating to Azure VERBOSE: Building your Azure drive PS /home/: >	

10. Select the **Upload file** option.

PowerShell V 🖞 ? 🚳			
Requesting a Cloud Shell.S Connecting terminal	Upload file Download		
MOTD: Save files to \$home/	Manage file share	stence across sessions	
VERBOSE: Authenticating to VERBOSE: Building your Azu PS /home/ > []			

- 11. Navigate to the downloaded file (previously unzipped) and click **Open** to upload it.
- 12. From the command prompt, type **dir** and hit return to confirm that the file has been uploaded.
- 13. From the command prompt enter: ./ConfigureSageADIdentity-subscriptionId.ps1

In the file name 'ConfigureSageADIDentity-subscriptionId', the subscriptionId will be your Azure subscription ID.

- 14. Type **Y** to confirm and continue.
- 15. After the configuration process is complete you will be returned to a command prompt. At this point, you will also receive your Azure API credentials in the form of the **Tenant ID**, **Client ID** and **Client Secret**. *Make a note of these as you will need them later*.
- 16. To verify that the scripts ran successfully, login to the Azure Portal then complete the following steps:
 - Click on Azure Active Directory
 - Click on App Registrations
 - Select All Applications

You should see your Sage application listed here.



Important Information

If the Sage entry is not listed in this window, do not proceed. Please contact support for further instructions.

Once you have run the PowerShell file, you can now setup the subscription in the Sage Provisioning Portal.

- 17. In the partner details, go to the **Subscriptions** panel. Notice that the status is showing **Pending Setup** for the new subscription.
- 18. Hover over the Actions column for the new subscription, then click on the Setup Subscription icon.



19. Enter your Azure API Credentials, then click Accept.



Important Information

If you have not run the PowerShell script in Azure or you did run the PowerShell script and the subscription is not ready yet, you will then receive the following message.



20. You will see that the status has changed to **Setting Up**. The setup process may take an hour to complete. You will receive an email when your subscription is ready.

Azure subscription Id	T	Name	T	Internal name	T	Organisation	T	Regi	ion T	Status		
of the second second second	10	Sandra Williams		wqCK1I1Umf		LS Partner		Wes	t US 2	SettingU	p 🖻	
< 1 × × 10 ×	r items pe	er page									1 - 1 of 1	items 🔿
~												
Customers												Add custom
Name	T	Contact Name	T 0	Contact Email	Ŧ	Phone	▼ s	ites	Internal	Trial	Status	Actions
NTERNAL - LS Partner		Sandra						0	~		Active	a 8
	itome pr	er page									1 - 1 of 1	items O
4 4 1 × × 10 4												

21. You can use the **View Logs** icon to display the logs for the subscription setup. This option is useful for troubleshooting setup issues.



22. Once the Subscription has been setup the status will change to Ready.

Azure subscription Id	Ŧ	Name	T	Internal name	T	Organisation	T	Region	T	Status	
contracted in the late	in the second	Sandra Williams		wqCK1I1Umf		LS Partner		West US 2		Ready	±.8 ₩ Ø

23. You will then receive an email informing you that the subscription has been setup, and that you can now access the Sage Provisioning Portal to add customers and create sites.

Lesson 3

Editing an Azure Subscription

To edit an Azure subscription in the Sage Provisioning Portal:

- 1. Click on the subscription name to be edited.
- 2. Enter the new **Name** of the subscription.
- 3. Click Save.

The Sage Provisioning Portal updates the subscription name in the database.



Check Your Knowledge

Answer the following questions about the material covered in this lesson.

Short Answer

Write a short answer to the question below.

1. What is the first step for setting up an Azure subscription?

Multiple Choice

Mark the correct answer(s) to the question below.

- 2. What Action can you use to help troubleshoot setup issues?
 - A. _____ View Logs
 - B. _____ Re-send email
 - C. _____ Lock Subscription
 - D. _____ Assign subscription



There are several steps to complete when setting up an Azure subscription.

- 1. First, the Partner Operator assigns an Azure subscription to the partner account.
- 2. The Partner Operator receives an email with instructions to setup the subscription.
- 3. The Partner Operator accepts the terms and conditions and downloads the PowerShell script file.
- 4. The Partner Operator runs the script in the Azure subscription.
- 5. The Partner Operator requests the Sage Provisioning Portal to setup the Azure subscription.
- 6. The subscription is ready in the Sage Provisioning Portal.

To edit an Azure subscription in the Sage Provisioning Portal, click on the subscription name to be edited. Enter the new **Name** of the subscription, then click **Save**.



Lesson 4 – Partner Operator: Managing Customers

Learning Outcomes

This lesson explains how to add a new customer and new customer site, activate, and invite new users, and will discuss how to access Sage 200 Professional.

Learning Objectives

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

- A. Add a new customer
- B. Add a new customer site
- C. Add and assign users
- D. Open Sage 200 Professional

Adding a New Customer

There are several steps to complete before a customer can start using Sage 200.

Partner Operator

First, the Partner Operator creates the account for a new customer.

1. From the **Quick Actions** option, click **Add customer**.

sage Provisioning Portal		Search Q 🧕 Sandra Williams 🗸 🥝
🔛 Deshboard 👻 🗗 Organisations 👻 🏦 Man	agement 👻	
LS Partner		Active B 😔 🚦 Add customer
Name: LS Partner	Sage Account Id:	
Business unit: No.		
Address 1: 13888 Wireless Way	Address 2:	
City: Richmond	Region: BC	
Postal code: V6V 0A3	Country: Canada	
Comments:		
Contacts		
Users		Add user
• Products		
• 🖹 Subscriptions		Assign subscription
sage	© 2020 Sage Sottware, Inc. All Rights Reserved. Partner area Ab-	bout



Additional Information

You can also add a new customer through the following method: In the Customers section, click the Add customer icon.

2. Enter the customer details in the New Customer wizard, then click Finish.

Add a customer		×
Customer information Enter the customer's information.		
Sage Account ID *	Partner *	
1	Required s Partner	
Company *		_
Address 1 *	Address 2	
City *	Region *	
Postal code *	Country *	
	United Kingdom	-
Comments		
1 Information	2 Contacts 3 Users	ext



Important Information

A new Sage Account is created using the email address provided.

3. A new customer record is now created.

	ing Portal				Search	Q 👤 Sandra	
Dashboard -	₿• Organisations ▼	11 Management 👻					
Customers							Export to Excel
Name	T	Contact name	Contact email	Telephone	T Status		
INTERNAL - LS Partn	er	Sandra			Active	â 🕯	Action 👻
Jennifer Evans		Jennifer			Active	a 🖻	Action 💌
John Everley		John			Active	ê û	Action 👻
× × 1 ×	. 10 - item	is per page				1-3 of 3	3 items
						ß	

4. Once the Partner Operator has entered the customer information in the Sage Provisioning Portal, a Sage Account Registration email is sent to the customer. The email will come to the same email address the customer gave during sign up and this email will not change, since it is used to create the customer account.



Important Information

If the customer has not received the Sage Account registration email, a partner can resend another email. From the customer profile, scroll down to the Users panel, then under the Actions heading click on the mail icon.

5. To view the status of the customer, click on the customer account details, then scroll down to the **Users** panel. The status will show **Inactive** until the customer has registered for a Sage Account.

Sage Provisioning Portal	🔏 ADD CUSTOWER	Sandra Williams
GE Dashboard Depresent Organisations		0
LS Partner > John Everley		
≗ John Everley	Coperations Becpecs Control Add site Cock customer Delete customer	
⊘ Customer data		
⊘ Contacts data		
	•14 •14	Save changes
Sites (0)		
O Users (1)		Add user
Name Email	Role Status Trial /	Actions
Everley, John	Customer Operations Agent, Customer Administrator Inactive No	8 8 0

For the customer to start using the solution, they will need to go through a few steps to get the process going.

- 1. The customer will receive an email containing a link to register their Sage Account.
- 2. Click the link, create a password when prompted then click Register.



Important Information

If a customer already has a Sage Account, they will register their existing Sage Account to this service.

- 3. The customer will then receive a Verification Code that is sent to their email.
- 4. They enter the Sage Account Verification Code, then click Continue.
- 5. Upon completing the Sage Account registration, they will be redirected onto the Sage Provisioning Portal. The site is currently being worked on by the Partner Operator. Check your email for further instructions.
- 6. They will receive an email informing them that their Sage Account has been registered, and that they can sign into the portal / Sage 200 application once it has been set up.

To view the status of the customer once they have registered, click the refresh button on your browser, then scroll down to the **Users** panel. The status will show **Active** when the customer's Sage Account has been registered. A new site can now be created for the customer.

Sage Provisioning Portal	🔓 ADD CUST	OMER Q Sandra Will	lams
SE Dashboard 🗄 Organisations 🏦 Management			0
LS Partner > John Everley			
1 John Everley	Operations		
	-	vdd site belete customer	
	Q =		
⊘ Contacts data			
		Save change	
		Save change	
Sites (0)			
⊗ Users (1)		Add user	
Name Email	Role	Status Trial Actions	
Everley, John	Customer Operations Agent, Customer Administrator	Active No 🔒 🗑	

Adding a New Customer Site

Once the customer has registered their Sage ID, the partner can now add a new site for the customer.

Partner Operator

1. To create a Site for a customer, go to **Organisations**, then select **Customers**.

Sage Provisioning Portal		Search Q	Sandra Williams + 🥐
Dashboard - Drganisations - A Management			
LS Pat Partners Shows all customers		Active 🖻 😔	ᠥ Operations
Name: LS Partner	Sage Account Id:		
Business unit: No			
Address 1: 13888 Wireless Way	Address 2:		
City: Richmond	Region: BC		
Postal code: V6V 0A3	Country: Canada		
Comments:			
▼ 🖭 Contacts			
• 👤 Users			Adduser
• Products			
• 🖹 Subscriptions			Assign subscription

2. Select the customer that you would like to create a new site for.

					earch C		usiness Partner 👻	lielp
Dashboard 👻 🗗 Organisati	ions - 11 Management -							
								Ð
Customers				_	_	_	Diport to Dicel	
Name T		▼ Contact email ▼	Telephone T	Status	Developer			
INTERNAL - Business Partner	Business	newsagepartner@yopmail.com newsagecustomer@yopmail.co		Active	No	â	Action 🔻	
New Sage Customer	New	m		Active	No	â	Action 💌	
ы. к. 1 . ж. н. 10 .	Ŧ					1	2 of 2 items 🔿	

3. To add a site for this customer, go to the **Operations** panel, then click **Add Site**.

90 Provisioning Portal				20 ADD CUSTOMER	٩	Business Pa
Dashboard 🗄 Organisations						
lusiness Partner > New Sage Customer						
New Sage Customer			Operations			
			Bacpacs	Add site	Delete customer	
		9 m				
Customer data						
artner			Sage Account Id			
Business Partner			67397077			
Namo						
New Sage Customer						
lddress 1			Address 2			
North Parj						
City			Region			
Newcastle upon Tyne			Tyne and Wear			
Postal code	Country					
NE13 9AA	United Kingdom 🗸		Internal Name: vo/21cxbzu			
Comments						

4. Enter the Site name, then select the Azure Subscription, Suite, Time zone, Product version, Rate Plan and Default admin user details. Click Next.

			Lo ADD CUSTOMER	٩	klpartneruki20210401 klpartneruki202104
Dashboard 📴 Organisations 👥 Managemen	st				0
KL Partner UKI SPC > Create site					
New site					
•					
Site details		Product parts			
Customer INTERNAL - TESTPARTNER1					
Site name	Site short name	Time zone			
test zuora	w4di6p69kp	(UTC+00:00) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London	~		
Suite		Azure Subscription			
Sage 200 Professional ~		EU North			
Product version	Rate Plan				
2021.00.000 (Full version)	Sage 200 Professional (SPC) Annual				
Default admin user					
klpartneruki202104, klpartneruki20210401 ~					
Partner reference					
INTERNAL - TESTPARTNER1					
Cancel				Previous	Next Fields
				R	

5. Select the required **modules** then select the amount of **App User** and **Web User** licenses you require.

SEG2 Provisioning Portal			LADD CUSTOMER	٩	klpartneruki20210401 klpartneruki202104
Dashboard 🗄 Organisations					0
KL Partner UKI SPC > Create site	C	à			
New site					
•		•			
Sile details 🖌		Product parts			
NAME		AMOUNT			
V Platform		1 Sage 200 App Users			
Veb Users	6	1 Sage 200 Web Users			
Commercials					
Bill of Materials					
Project Accounting					
Cancel				Previous	Next Finish
				G	
p manage					

- 6. After you have finished entering the site details, the following message will appear 'All steps were completed you will be notified when the site creation process has finished.'
- 7. The status for this new site shows Pending Acceptance.

8. Once the Partner Operator has entered the customer site information in the Sage Provisioning Portal, a Sage Site Creation Confirmation Acceptance email is sent to the customer. There will be a link in the email that the customer will click on to accept our terms and conditions.

After they click the link, they will be taken to a screen which shows the modules that have been selected for them and confirm that they have read the **Terms and conditions.**

Once the customer is happy to continue they click 'I accept the terms and conditions', and 'I acknowledge and agree that my Sage business partner will have administrator access to the site that hosts my Sage product(s) and the data therein', then click Confirm.

Once they have acknowledged that they have read the information the following message will appear '**The** site has been accepted successfully.' The status for this site now shows as **Provision**.

After the customer has accepted the terms and conditions, about one hour later the partner will receive an email informing them that the site is ready for use.

9. The partner can now send an email to the customer to inform them that the site is now ready.

Select the new customer site, then click on the mail icon.

B Dashboard * B Organisations * Management *			
🕞 Jennifer Evans		Ready	1 K B 🖉 🖿
Select Yes to notify the customer that the site i	is ready for use.		
Confirmation	×		
Do you want to notify the customer that the site is rea	ady for use?		
Yes	No		

10. The following message will appear: "The email notification has been sent to the customer".

Customer

11. The customer will receive an email informing them that the Sage 200 site is ready. There is an option on the email to **Manage your site and invite other users.** They can do this to add and assign any users that require access to the site...

Adding and Assigning Users

Sage 200 Professional uses single Sage Account sign-on. All users are managed from the Sage Provisioning Portal.

After registering for a Sage 200 subscription, the initial user will be able to add and assign additional users to the offering. It is imperative that the users are created using the following steps. Do not create users in Azure Active Directory manually – this will cause issues. The users must be created in the Sage Provisioning Portal to ensure that they are provisioned in Azure correctly and are placed in the correct Azure Active Directory groups.

Allowing additional users for access to Sage 200 Professional requires 2 steps:

- 1. Adding the user to the customer record. An email address is required for them to get registered.
- 2. Assigning the registered user to the Site.

Customer Operations Agent (Inviter): Adding a user

The customer operations agent can access the Sage Provisioning Portal to initiate the invitation process for adding a user.

1. From the **Organisations** menu, select **Users** then click **Add user**.



2. You can find below a full explanation of each of the fields available in the New user screen.

nail Organization Learning Services Customer			Name
Learning Services Customer		Organization	Email
	~	Learning Services Customer	
le			Role
Customer Operations Agent 🗌 Customer Administrator		Customer Administrator	Customer Operations Agent
Customer User			🗌 Customer User

Name/Email: Fill out the appropriate name and email address for the user.

Role: Select the appropriate role for the user.

Customer Operations Agent –This is a user with privileges to Sage Provisioning Portal for managing users as well as access to Sage 200 Professional. *This user can create Customer Operations Agent and Customer User roles on the portal.*

Customer User – This is a user that can only access Sage 200 Professional.

Customer Administrator –This user is the Business Owner that can accept the terms and conditions and can manage users. It is uncommon to select this privilege when adding/assigning new users. *This user can create Customer Administrator, Customer Operations Agent and Customer User roles on the portal.*

3. After adding the new user information and clicking **Save**, the user is added in the list, and the invitee user status is **Inactive**.



Invitee: Sage ID Registration

- 1. The 'Invitee' receives an invitation email in their inbox.
- 2. The invitee follows the steps on the email to register their Sage Account.
- 3. Upon completing the Sage Account registration, the invitee will be redirected onto the Sage Provisioning Portal.
- 4. The invitee then receives another email in their email inbox which confirms that their Sage Account has been registered.

Customer Operations Agent (Inviter): Assigning Invitee to a Site

1. Once the Invitee has completed the Sage Account registration, the Customers Operations Agent (Inviter) can refresh the customer record to see that the Invitee status has switched to **Active**.

Previously, the status was **Inactive**. Only when the Sage ID is switched to **Active** can the Customers Operations Agent (Inviter) assign the invitee to a Site for the customer record.

2. The Customers Operations Agent (Inviter) can access the **Site Dashboard**, select the site, and then in the **Users** panel, click the **Assign user** option to assign this invitee to the site.

▲ Users Assign accountant Assign u	ser
------------------------------------	-----

3. When assigning the user to the Site, choose the **Role** from the dropdown for the invited user.

Assign user	×
User	
Select one	~
Role	
Select one	~
	Save Cancel

The Assign user options available will depend on the role that you have.

Customers Operations Agent (Invitee): Access to Sage 200 Professional

The newly assigned user will now receive two emails.

• The first email states that they have been given access to a Sage 200 Application site, and advises the user to download the Remote Desktop Application.



Use uninquient mark countencements of the second se

• The second email provides a link to obtain their login details for Microsoft Windows Virtual Desktop. This will contain a temporary password that must be changed on first login.





Thank you for using the Sage Provisioning Portal The Sage 200 Team

Accessing and Opening Sage 200 Professional

Using the link in the first email, the customer user will download and run the installer for Microsoft Remote Desktop.

1. They will be presented with this screen...



Click Next to continue.

- 2. Accept the terms and conditions.
- 3. Select the installation scope then click install.



4. Let the installation complete then launch the application.



5. Once the application launches, you will be presented with this screen. Click Subscribe.



6. Sign in with your Sage Account. If you see the following screen, choose whether to stay signed in.



7. Once the process has completed, you'll see this screen...



8. When you open the Remote Desktop app, it will look like this...



Depending on the user's level of access, you may not see all of these icons.

SessionDesktop: This icon gives you access to the virtual machine to allow you to perform additional tasks like installing Excel for example. This icon will usually only be visible to the business partner.

Sage200 Admin: This icon gives you access to the Sage 200 Administrator application.

Sage200 Desktop: This icon gives you access to the Sage 200 Professional desktop application.

Double clicking on any of the icons will open them in a new window on your desktop. The users would then use the application as they normally would if this were an on-premise version.

When you open Sage System Administrator for the first time, you should be prompted to enter the Account Number and Serial Number for your customer. This can be found in the Sage Provisioning Portal. The account number can be found in the Customer Record...

age Provisioning Portal		20 ADD CUSTOMER 20 ADD PARTNER		Q SPP SF
🔡 Dashboard 🔁 Organisations 🚯 Try & Buy 🎎 Management 🕲 Configuration				•
Sage UK >	Operations			
	Bacpacs	Add site Change partner	Lock customer	
Customer data				
Partner	Sage Account Id			
Ν				

The Serial Number can be found on the Site page within the portal...

ge Provisioning Portal		Search	Q 👤 SPP SPC 🗸
Dashboard ▼ 🗗 Organisations ▼ 🕀 Try & Buy ▼	tt Management ▼ Ø Configuration ▼		
£	Ready 💄 🕕 🖹 🖨 🛗	Operations	
Add tag	<u></u>	🖋 Amend	🔒 Lock
		🔒 Repair	💾 Backup
Product: Sage 200 Professional	Acceptance date: 22/06/2021	3 Restore	Bacpacs
Version: 2021.00.000	Last access:	II Suspend	🗗 Change status
Rate plan: Sage 200 Professional (SPC) Monthly	Contract effective date: 22/06/2021	Quick delete	
Type: Production	Contract renewal date:	■ Quick delete	
Time zone: (UTC+00:00) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London	Notice period date:		
Site administration: Disabled	Delete date: Select date		
Serial number :	Times displayed in UTC format		

If, for some reason, you are not prompted to enter the details then right-click on the License menu option and click Update.



Enter your Account Number and Serial Number then click OK. The program will then validate the license.



There are several steps to complete before a customer can start using the solution.

- 1. First, the Partner Operator creates the account for a new customer.
- 2. Once the Partner Operator has entered the customer information in the Sage Provisioning Portal, a Sage Account Registration email is sent to the customer.
- 3. After completing the Sage Account registration, the customer will be redirected onto the Sage Provisioning Portal.
- 4. Once the site is created by the Partner Operator, the customer will receive an email confirming that their Sage Account has been registered.

Allowing additional users for access to Sage 200 requires 2 steps:

- 1. Adding the user to the customer record.
- 2. Assigning the registered user to the Site.

The 'Manage Sage 200 and invite others to use it' link is only available to assigned users given the Customer Operations Agent role. A user given Customer User role will not have access to this link.



End of Lesson

Lesson 5 – Partner Operator: Site Maintenance

Learning Outcomes

This lesson explains how to work with backups and how to repair a site.

Learning Objectives

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

- A. Back up Policy
- B. Back up a database for Sage 200
- C. Back up a site
- D. Restore a database backup for Sage 200
- E. Delete a database for Sage 200
- F. Restore a site backup
- G. Repair a site
- H. Change a virtual machine size
- I. Recover files from Azure virtual machine backup

Backup Policy

Sage Provisioning Portal (SPP) uses automatic rolling backups, and you can create backups on demand.

Rolling backups

SPP keeps a backup of the virtual machine and databases for the previous 7 days, 1 month and 1 year.

Regardless of when a site is created, SPP creates a monthly backup on the last day of the month. For example, if a site is provisioned on January 1st, on February 1st you would be able to restore data for the entire month of January.

When creating daily and monthly backups for the Sage Partner Cloud, SPP uses Azure Recovery Services Vault for the virtual machine and point in time recovery (PiTR) for the databases (no physical file is created). Yearly backups use Azure Recovery Services Vault for virtual machines. Any SQL Server databases are backed up in a bacpac file. These files are stored in a geo replicated storage container for each site.

On demand backups

You can create a backup of a site or individual databases at any time.

How the automatic backups work

Daily / Monthly:

SPP has a physical backup for the VM data disk and use PiTR for the databases (no physical file is generated).

Yearly:

SPP has a physical backup for the VM data disk and export the databases in a bacpac format.

SPP uses restore points (Azure Recovery Services vault) for the VM and export the databases in a bacpac format.



Additional Information

SPP keeps the yearly backup until December 31.

On demand backups:

SPP has a physical backup for the VM data disk and export the databases in a bacpac format.

SPP adds a restore point (Azure Recovery Services vault) for the VM and export the databases in a bacpac format.



Additional Information

The Sage Provisioning Portal does not keep physical files for VM restore points (Azure Recovery Services vault) or PiTR for databases. For those files that SPP exports they are stored in a storage container per site (VM data disk backup and database bacpac files). Storage containers are geo replicated.

Backing up a Database for Sage 200

You can create an on-demand backup that does not affect users working with the product. Only the selected database is backed up. The point-in-time restore (PITR) feature is used for database backups.

To create an on-demand backup for Sage 200:

- 1. From the Sage Provisioning Portal, go to Dashboard, then select Site Dashboard.
- 2. Select the **Site Name**.
- 3. Expand the **Databases** panel.
- 4. Under the Actions heading, click the Backup icon for the database that you want to back up.
- 5. Click Yes.

Backing up a Site

A site backup includes backups for the virtual machine and data disks. All Azure SQL databases that are included in the site are included in the backup. The backups are housed in Azure Recovery Services vaults.

To create a site backup:

- 1. From the Sage Provisioning Portal, go to Dashboard, then select Site Dashboard.
- 2. Select the Site Name.
- 3. Under the **Operations** panel, click **Backup**.
- 4. Click Yes.

Restoring a Database Backup for Sage 200

To restore a database backup for Sage 200:

- 1. From the Sage Provisioning Portal, go to Dashboard, then select Site Dashboard.
- 2. Select the Site Name.
- 3. Expand the **Databases** panel.
- 4. Under the Actions heading, click the Restore icon.
- 5. From the **Restore database backup** screen, click **Restore database** next to the date that you choose to restore.
- 6. Click **Yes** to the confirmation message.

This may take some time (e.g., 15 minutes to one hour) to restore a database backup for Sage 200.

You can also restore ICT databases for Sage 200. For system databases you can only copy and then download the database.



Important Information

When Sage Provisioning Portal restores any database it automatically creates a database with the same name and the suffix "_restored". This "_restored" database is used for the PiTR (Point in Time Restore) and it is automatically deleted after 30 days.

You should NOT delete the "_restored" databases as they are used by Sage Provisioning Portal for restore options.

What is the difference between Restore and Copy?

Restore: The Restore option restores the database up to the date you choose to restore the database.

Copy: The Copy backup option exports the database, and then is moved to the "on demand backups" section. Backups in this section are never deleted and can be downloaded as a bacpac file.

Retention Policy: When a site is deleted, database backups are kept for 60 days.

Deleting a Database for Sage 200

To delete a database for Sage 200 Professional:

- 1. From the Sage Provisioning Portal, go to Dashboard, then select Site Dashboard.
- 2. Select the Site Name.
- 3. Expand the **Databases** panel.
- 4. Under the Actions heading, click the Delete icon.
- 5. Click Yes.

Restoring a Site Backup

When you restore a site, the virtual machine and all data disks are restored. All SQL databases are included in the restore.

The virtual machine is stopped before it is restored. It is started again after the restore process is complete.

- 1. From the Sage Provisioning Portal, go to Dashboard, then select Site Dashboard.
- 2. Select the **Site Name**.
- 3. Under the **Operations** panel, click **Restore**.
- 4. From the **Restore site backup** screen, click **Restore site** icon next to the date to restore a site backup.
- 5. Click **Yes** to the confirmation message.
- 6. The status of the site will change to **Restoring**. Once the restore is complete the status will change back to a **Ready** status.

Repairing a Site

You can repair a site regardless of its status. This operation is used to troubleshoot minor issues. The actions associated with the repair operation depend on the operating company.

To repair a site:

- 1. From the Sage Provisioning Portal, go to Dashboard, then select Site Dashboard.
- 2. Select the Site Name.
- 3. Under the **Operations** panel, click **Repair**.
- 4. Click Yes.

Changing a Virtual Machine Size

To change the virtual machine size:

- 1. From the Sage Provisioning Portal, go to Dashboard, then select Site Dashboard.
- 2. Select the Site Name.
- 3. Under the **Operations** panel, click **Change VM size**.
- 4. From the drop-down menu, select the **Size**.
- 5. Click Save.

Recover Files From Azure Virtual Machine Backup

For more advanced users, you can recover files and folders from an Azure VM backup. Restoring files and folders is available only for Azure VMs deployed using the Resource Manager model and protected to a Recovery Services vault. The backups performed within the Sage Provisioning Portal utilize this approach, so these instructions apply to automatic and manual backups performed in the portal.

To learn more about how to recover files from Azure virtual machine backup go to: <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/azure/backup/backup-azure-restore-files-from-vm</u>



Important Note

The training resources provided above is created and maintained by Microsoft. Every effort has been made to ensure that the information provided is accurate, up-to-date, and complete, but no guarantee is made to that effect as URLs are continuously changing.

Caution:

- Manually replacing individual files in a Sage 200 installation can cause system corruption or instability and should only be attempted by partners with experience doing so, or with guidance from Sage support.
- If you choose to recover files from an Azure VM backup, there will be no audit trail in the Sage Provisioning Portal for this action.



Check Your Knowledge

Answer the following questions about the material covered in this lesson.

Short Answer

Write a short answer to the question below.

1. What are the two steps to back up a site?

Multiple Choice

Mark the correct answer(s) to the question below.

- 2. What option do you select under the Actions heading to back up a database?
 - A. _____ Repair
 - B. ____ Backup
 - C. ____ Restore D. ____ Delete



You can create an on-demand backup that does not affect users working with the product.

A site backup includes backups for virtual machines, databases, and disks.

You can repair a site regardless of its status. This operation is used to troubleshoot minor issues. The actions associated with the repair operation depend on the operating company.



Lesson 6 – Partner Operator: Managing Additional Azure SQL Servers

Learning Outcomes

This lesson explains how to manage additional Azure SQL servers in the Sage Provisioning Portal.

Learning Objectives

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

- A. Add an Azure SQL Server
- B. View Azure SQL Server database details
- C. Add a login for an Azure SQL Server database
- D. Assign a login account to a database
- E. Change the password for a server login account
- F. Change the role(s) assigned to a login account for a database

Managing Additional Azure SQL Servers

If you are installing an application that requires its own Azure SQL server, you can add an Azure SQL server to the site.

When you create Azure SQL servers and add databases to them, the databases are automatically synchronized with the Sage Provisioning Portal. The synchronization process automatically starts every hour. You can also synchronize them manually. Because the databases are synchronized, you can use the backup and restore features in the provisioning portal.



Important Note

• When you delete a site, the Azure SQL server and related databases are not deleted.

Because the databases are not created as part of the site creation process, when you delete the site, these databases are not deleted.

Adding an Azure SQL Server:

- 1. From the **Sites** list, select the site to open the site details page.
- 2. In the **Database servers** panel, click **Add SQL Server**.
- 3. In the **New SQL Server** window, enter and confirm the password for the SQL server administrator account.

The password must meet the following requirements:

- Between 8 and 128 characters.
- Cannot contain all or part of the login name (part is defined as three or more consecutive characters).
- Must contain at least one character from three of the following characters:
 - An uppercase letter from the English alphabet
 - A lowercase letter from the English alphabet
 - A number
 - A non-alphanumeric character

4. The server name and server administrator name are automatically created and cannot be changed.

5. Click Save.

The Azure SQL Server is added to the Database servers list. Initially the status is Creating, and it will switch to Ready within a few minutes.

To view Azure SQL Server database details:

- 1. From the **Sites** list, select the site to open the site details page.
- 2. In the **Database servers panel**, in the **Name** column, click the Azure SQL server name. The Azure SQL server details window opens showing the following fields:
 - Name: The URL for the Azure SQL server. (You'll need this to connect to the server.)
 - Server admin: administrator account user name.
 - Server logins panel: Displays the logins that have been created. (For security purposes the default login is not shown.)
 - Databases panel: Shows the databases that have been created in the Azure SQL server.

The following buttons are available in the Operations area:

- Set server admin password: Click to set a new password for the database administrator.
- **Sync databases**: Click to manually synchronize the databases in Azure with the Sage Provisioning Portal.
- **Delete server**: Click to delete the Azure SQL server. You can delete a server only if it contains no databases.

Adding a login for an Azure SQL Server database:

- 1. From the **Sites** list, select the site to open the site details page.
- 2. In the **Database servers** panel, in the **Name** column, click the SQL server name. The SQL server details window opens.
- 3. In the **Server logins** panel, click **Add Login**. The Add Login window opens.
- 4. In the **Name** field, enter a user name.

The field contains a view-only area with text that is automatically added to the beginning of the user name.

5. Enter and confirm the password.

The password must meet the following requirements:

- Between 8 and 128 characters
- Cannot contain all or part of the login name (part is defined as three or more consecutive characters)
- Must contain at least one character from three of the following characters:
 - An uppercase letter from the English alphabet
 - A lowercase letter from the English alphabet
 - A number
 - A non-alphanumeric character
- 6. Click Save.

The login account is added to the Server logins panel. Initially the status is Pending while the account is being created. The status will then change to Active.



Important Note

Click the Refresh button to refresh the status list.

Assigning a login account to a database:

- 1. From the **Sites** list, select the site to open the site details page.
- 2. In the **Database servers** panel, in the **Name** column, click the SQL server name. The SQL server details window opens.
- 3. In the **Databases** panel, in the **Actions** column, click the **Manage Logins** button. The Manage login accounts window opens.
- 4. In the Database users panel, click Assign login. The Assign login account window opens.
- 5. In the **Login** field, select the login.
- 6. In the **Roles** area, select one or more roles for the account.
- 7. Click Save.

The login account is added to the Database users panel. Initially the status is Pending. The status will then change to Active when the login account has been added to the database.

Changing the password for a server login account (other than the administrator account):

- 1. From the **Sites** list, select the site to open the site details page.
- 2. In the **Database servers** panel, in the **Name** column, click the SQL server name. The SQL server details window opens.
- 3. In the **Server logins** area, in the **Actions** column, click the **Set password** button. The Set login password window opens.
- 4. Enter and confirm the new password.
- 5. Click Save.

Changing the role(s) assigned to a login account for a database:

- 1. From the **Sites** list, select the site to open the site details page.
- 2. In the **Database servers** panel, in the **Name** column, click the SQL server name. The SQL server details window opens.
- 3. In the **Databases** panel, in the **Actions** column, click the **Manage Logins** button. The Manage login accounts window opens.
- 4. In the **Database Users** panel, in the **Actions** column, click the **Edit** button. The Edit database user roles window opens.
- 5. In the **Roles** area, select or clear the role checkboxes as needed to assign or unassign roles.
- 6. Click Save.



Check Your Knowledge

Answer the following questions about the material covered in this lesson.

Short Answer

Write a short answer to the question below.

1. What are the steps to change the password for a server login account?

Multiple Choice

Mark the correct answer(s) to the question below.

- 2. What option do you select to add an Azure SQL Server?

 - A. _____ Add SQL Server B. _____ Assign Login C. _____ Sync Databases D. _____ Manage Logins
Partner Operator: Managing Additional Azure SQL Servers



If you are installing an application that requires its own Azure SQL server, you can add an Azure SQL server to the site.

When you create Azure SQL servers and add databases to them, the databases are automatically synchronized with the Sage Provisioning Portal.



Sage Partner Cloud - Answer Keys

This chapter includes the answers for all the Check Your Knowledge sections in this guide.

Lesson 1 – Sage Provisioning Portal

1. Operating company, partner, and customer.

 Sage Operator creates new partner accounts, Partner Operator creates new accounts and sites for a customer, Customer Operations Agent adds users to the customer record then assigns users to the site.
 D

Lesson 2 – Sage Operator

1. You can click on the Portal link, in the email that confirms that your Sage ID has been registered.

You can access the Portal through the following URL: https://www.sageerponlineservices.com/ 2. B

Lesson 3 – Partner Operator: Setting up Subscriptions

1. In the manage your subscription email, select step 1 to download the Azure template and PowerShell script.

2. A

Lesson 4 – Partner Operator: Managing Customers

1. Adding the user to the customer record. Assigning the registered user to the Site. 2. C

Lesson 5 - Partner Operator: Site Maintenance

 From the Sage Provisioning Portal, go to Dashboard, then select Site Dashboard. Select the Site Name. Under the Operations panel, click Backup. Click Yes.

2. B

Answer Keys

Lesson 6 – Partner Operator: Managing Additional Azure SQL Servers

From the Site list, select the site to open the site details page.
 In the Database servers panel, in the Name column, click the SQL server name.
 In the Server logins area, in the Actions column, click the Set password button.
 Enter and confirm the new password.
 Click Save.

2. A



Appendix

Learning Outcomes

The following topics are included in this Appendix:

- Microsoft Azure Resource Tagging
- Microsoft Azure Training Resources
- Two-factor Identification
- Creating a User in Azure
- Giving Users Permissions
- About Execution Policies
- Change the Execution Policy
- Azure PowerShell Command Line
- Office Deployment Tools
- Windows Update
- Selecting a Mode to Run Applications

Microsoft Azure Resource Tagging

Resources created by the Sage Provisioning Portal in Azure are tagged so that it is easier to filter them. The following table lists the resources that are tagged and the tags for each one.

	Tagged Resources	Tags
Virtual machine for sites hosted	Virtual Machine	SPPSite
in an SPP subscription	Data Disk	SPPCustomer
	OS Disk	SPPProduct
	Network Interface Card	SPPSubscription
		SPPPartner
Virtual machine for sites hosted	Virtual Machine	SPPSite
in a partner subscription	Data Disk	SPPCustomer
	OS Disk	SPPProduct
	Network Interface Card	SPPSubscription
	Application Security Group	SPPPartner
Partner infrastructure	Network Security Group	SPPSubscription
	Recovery Services Vault	SPPPartner
	KeyVault	
	Virtual Network	
	Storage Account	
	Application Security Group	
Databases	All site databases	SPPSite
		SPPCustomer
		SPPProduct
		SPPSubscription
		SPPPartner

Microsoft Azure Training Resources

The following are recommended training resources that will help develop the competencies that you require.



Important Note

The training resources provided below are created and maintained by Microsoft. Every effort has been made to ensure that the information provided is accurate, up-to-date, and complete, but no guarantee is made to that effect as URLs are continuously changing.

Quickstart: Create an Azure SQL Database single database

https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/azure/azure-sql/database/single-database-create-quickstart?tabs=azure-portal

Connect to a SQL Server virtual machine on Azure <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/azure/azure-sql/virtual-machines/windows/ways-to-connect-to-sql</u>

Authorize database access to SQL Database, SQL Managed Instance, and Azure Synapse Analytics

Appendix

https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/azure/azure-sql/database/logins-create-manage

Elastic pools help you manage and scale multiple databases in Azure SQL Database <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/azure/azure/azure-sql/database/elastic-pool-overview</u>

The Creation of resources in Azure is governed by Role based Access Control. RBAC can be applied at the subscription, resource group or resource level.

https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/azure/role-based-access-control/role-assignments-portal

Azure DevOps multi-stage deployments https://levelup.gitconnected.com/azure-devops-multi-stage-deployments-708a54700a85

Multi-stage pipelines user experience https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/azure/devops/pipelines/get-started/multi-stage-pipelinesexperience?view=azure-devops

Azure DevOps Pipelines - Multi-Stage Pipelines and YAML for Continuous Delivery

https://devblogs.microsoft.com/premier-developer/azure-devops-pipelines-multi-stage-pipelines-and-yamlfor-continuous-delivery/

Service Organization Controls (SOC)

https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-365/compliance/offering-soc?view=o365-worldwide

Microsoft Azure Compliance Offerings (Download and jump to the compliance requirement) <u>https://azure.microsoft.com/en-us/resources/microsoft-azure-compliance-offerings/</u>

Two-factor Identification

To add an extra layer of protection for your Sage Account, you can add two-factor authentication. With this feature added, after you enter your Sage Account and password to log in to an application, you will receive a text message or phone call with a code. You must then enter the code to complete the log-in process. You can select a check box so that you do not have to enter a code the next time that you log in on that same device.

To add two-factor identification for your Sage Account:

- 1. Click this link or copy it into your browser address bar: https://account.sso.sage.com
- 2. Log in with your Sage Account.
- 3. Click Manage Account.
- 4. In the Two-Factor Authentication area, click Add.
- 5. Click Continue.
- 6. Select your country code and enter a phone number.
- 7. Select an option to get the code by either a text message or phone call.

- 8. Click Continue. A code is sent to the phone number that you entered.
- 9. Enter the code and then click Continue.

Two-factor identification is now set up for your Sage ID.

Creating a User in Azure

1. Log in to: <u>Http://portal.azure.com</u>

Microsoft Azure	. 𝒫 Search resources, services, and	docs (G+/)				B; 0 ⊗ ? ©
Create a resource	Azure services					
🛉 Home	+ 📖	P (2)	٠		(A)	$\odot \rightarrow$
Dashboard	Create a All resources	Virtual Resource	Azure Active Subscriptions			Cost More services
All services	resource All resources	machines groups	Directory	Alerts	Management groups M	fanagement
FAVORITES						
All resources	Recent resources					
Resource groups	Name					Last Viewed
🕏 App Services	AzureBackup		Туре			
nution App			Virtual machine			3 weeks ago
👼 SQL databases	Account A		Subscription			2 months ago
🐼 Azure Cosmos DB	BKRVMS		Resource group			2 months ago
👤 Virtual machines	BKRVMWIN		Virtual machine			2 months ago
💠 Load balancers	BKRReport		Resource group			2 months ago
ndvisor	(e) Reports		Resource group			2 months ago
Storage accounts	📍 Account C		Subscription			2 months ago
Virtual networks	📍 Microsoft Azure		Subscription			2 months ago
🚸 Azure Active Directory	📍 BillyCreateInAzure		Subscription			2 months ago
Monitor	usagereports		Storage account			3 months ago
Security Center	(A) SendReport		Logic app			7 months ago
🧸 Help + support	EmailCostReports		Application Insights			7 months ago
(Management groups						
Subscriptions	Navigate					
🛋 Marketplace						
🏶 Service Health	Subscriptions	Resource groups	All resources	5	📶 Dashb	oard
Azure Sentinel						
O Cost Management + Billing	Tools					



Important Note

Your screen may look different depending on the resources that you may or may not have.

Microsoft Azure	P Search resources, a	ervices, and docs (G	i*/)					23 G O	@ ? @
Create a resource	Azure services								
P Home	-	. 5					(43)	0	\rightarrow
Dashboard		iources Virb		Azure Active	Subscriptions	Alerts	Management	Cost	More services
E All services	resource	mach		Directory	20090101001	Note Ca	groups	Management	NOTE SET HOLES
RAVORITES									
All resources	Recent resources								
 Persource groups 	2			12				10110-0	
💀 App Services	Name			Type				Last Viewed	
🖇 Function App	RuneBackup				machine			3 weeks ago	
🗧 SQL databases	P Account A			Subscri				2 months ago	
Azure Cosmos DB	(e) BIOLANS				ce group			2 months ago	
🛒 Virtual machines	BIRVMWIN				machine			2 months ago	
💠 Load balancers	(Ø) BKRReport			Resour	ce group			2 months ago	
💁 Advisor	[0] Reports			Resour	ce group			2 months ago	
Storage accounts	📍 Account C			Subscr	iption			2 months ago	
Virtual networks	📍 Microsoft Azure			Subscri	iption			2 months ago	
Azure Active Directory	📍 BillyCreateInAzure			Subscri	iption			2 months ago	
C Monitor	usagereports			Storage	e account			3 months ago	
Security Center	(A) SendReport			Logic a	99.			7 months ago	
👢 Help + support	SmallCostReports			Applica	ation Insights			7 months ago	
(d) Management groups									
Y Subscriptions	Navigate								
Marketplace	1000 - 1000 (10 00 - 1000)								
Forvice Health	📍 Subscriptions	1	Resource groups		All resources	E.	24	ashboard	
Azure Sontinel									
O Cost Management + Billing	Tools								

2. Click on Azure Active Directory.

3. The Azure Active Directory screen should appear. Click on Users.



4. From the Users screen, click on New user.

Users All users (P InsightXYZ - Azure Active Directory	review)							
	+ New user	+ New gues	t user 🗋 Bulk operations	🗸 🚫 Refresh 🖉	Reset password 🗹 Multi-	Factor Authentication 🗐 🛙	elete user 🔰 💷 Column	s Preview info
All users (Preview)								
B Deleted users (Preview)	This page i	ncludes preview	s available for your evaluation. \	/iew previews →				
Password reset	Q Search users		to Ac	id filters				
User settings	26 users found							
X Diagnose and solve problems	Name	1.	User principal name $\uparrow \downarrow$	User type	Directory synced	Identity issuer	Company name	Creation type
Activity	🗆 🙆 Ann	a Beron	aberon@zxysupply.onmi	Member	No	ZXYsupply.onmicrosoft	Loon	
Sign-ins	🔲 🐻 Billy	Roberts	broberts@zxysupply.on	Member	No	ZXYsupply.onmicrosoft	LCON	
Audit logs	BR Billy	Roberts	billy@zxysupply.onmicro	Member	No	ZXYsupply.onmicrosoft	LCOR	
& Bulk operation results	🗌 🕝 Carl	Payne	cpayne@ZXVsupply.onm	Member	No	ZXVsupply.onmicrosoft	Loon	
Troubleshooting + Support	Carl	Payne	carl_abcsupply,onmicros	Guest	No	ZXYsupply.onmicrosoft	Lcon	Invitation
New support request	🗌 🙁 Clai	e Saddington	claire@zxysupply.onmicr	Member	No	ZXYsupply.onmicrosoft	Loon	
ivew support request	De Dan	unn Eink	dfink@zxysupply.onmicr	Member	No	ZXYsupply.onmicrosoft	con	

5. You will now create a **New user**. Enter the details in the **Identity** section.

11		
Home > InsightXYZ > Users > New user		
InsightXYZ		
💙 Got feedback?		
Create user Create a new user in your organization. This user will h		
user name like alice@zxysupply.onmicrosof I want to create users in bulk	t.com. invitation they can accept in order to begin collaborating. I want to invite guest users in bulk	
Help me decide		
Identity		
User name * 🕕	Example: chris	
Name * 🛈	Example: 'Chris Green'	
First name		
Last name		
Groups and roles		
Groups	0 groups selected	
Roles	User	
Create		

6. After you enter the information in the **User name** and **Name** fields, the section for **Password** information will display. You can either create your own password or let Azure create one for you. If you let Azure auto-generate a password, then click **Show Password** to make note of the password.

Home > InsightXYZ > Use	rs >	
New user		
insightXYZ		
Sot feedback?		
Help me decide		
Identity		
User name * 🛈	testuser 🗸 @ zxysupply.onmicrosoft.com 🗸 🗈	
	The domain name I need isn't shown here	
Name * 🛈	Test User 🗸	
First name		
Last name		
Password	Auto-generate password	
	Let me create the password	
Initial password		
ver hit folkolitete et teologie beso	Show Password	
Groups and roles		
Groups	0 groups selected	
Roles	User	
Create		
create		

7. If you need to create a Global Admin that can create other passwords, then in the **Groups and roles** section, click on **User.** If not, skip this step.

Groups and roles	
Groups	0 groups selected
Roles	User
Create	

8. From the list of roles available select Global administrator, then click Select.

🗌 🍰 Conditional .	Access administrator	Can manage conditional access capabilities.
🗌 🍰 Customer Lo	ckBox access approver	Can approve Microsoft support requests to access customer organizational data
🗌 🍰 Desktop Ana	lytics administrator	Can access and manage Desktop management tools and services.
🗌 🍰 Directory rea	ders	Can read basic directory information. Commonly used to grant directory read a,
📄 🍰 Directory wr	ters	Can read and write basic directory information. For granting access to applicati
🗌 🍰 Dynamics 36	5 administrator	Can manage all aspects of the Dynamics 365 product.
🗌 🍰 Exchange ad	ministrator	Can manage all aspects of the Exchange product.
📄 🍰 External ID u	ser flow administrator	Can create and manage all aspects of user flows.
📄 🍰 External ID u	ser flow attribute administrator	Can create and manage the attribute schema available to all user flows.
📄 🍰 External Ider	itity Provider administrator	Can configure identity providers for use in direct federation.
🗌 🍰 Global admii	histrator	Can manage all aspects of Azure AD and Microsoft services that use Azure AD
🗌 🍰 Global reade	r	Can read everything that a global administrator can, but not update anything.
🗌 🍰 Groups adm	nistrator	Can manage all aspects of groups and group settings like naming and expirati
🗌 🍰 Guest inviter		Can invite guest users independent of the 'members can invite guests' setting.
📄 🍰 Helpdesk ad	ministrator	Can reset passwords for non-administrators and Helpdesk administrators.
🗌 🍰 Hybrid ident	ity administrator 📕	Can enable, deploy, configure, manage, monitor, and troubleshoot cloud provi
📄 🍰 Insights adm	inistrator 📕	Has administrative access in the Insights app.
🗌 🍰 Insights busi	ness leader 📕	Can view and share dashboards and insights via the M365 Insights app.
📄 🍰 Intune admii	istrator	Can manage all aspects of the Intune product.
📄 🍰 Kaizala admi	nistrator	Can manage settings for Microsoft Kaizala.
🗌 🍰 License adm	nistrator	Ability to assign, remove and update license assignments.
🗌 🍰 Message cer	iter privacy reader	Can read Message Center posts, data privacy messages, groups, domains and
🗌 🍰 Message cer	iter reader	Can read messages and updates for their organization in Office 365 Message C.
🗌 🍰 Network adr	ninistrator 📕	Can manage network locations and review enterprise network design insights f
🗌 🝰 Office apps a	edministrator	Can manage Office apps cloud services, including policy and settings manage

9. Click **Create**, to create this new user.

New user		
🗢 Got feedback?		
teip me decide		
dentity		
Jser name * 💿	testuser 🖌 🖉 ziysupply.onmicrosoft.com The domain name Lineed isn't	
		SUPPLY DELE
Name* 🛈	Test User	×
first name		
ast name		
Password		
	Auto-generate password	
	C Let me create the password	
nitial password		
	Show Password	
Sroups and roles		
Troups	0 groups selected	
Roles	Global administrator	
toles.		

You have created an Azure user. The next step is to give this user access to the Azure subscription. Until they have access to a subscription, they will not be able to administer the Sage environment.

Giving Users Permissions

You now need to give the user access to the subscription that the Sage environment is provisioned.

1. In the search bar type in the word **Subscription**, then click on **Subscriptions**.

Microsoft Azure		P Subscription					×	Σ	G
Create a resource Home Dashboard All services All services All resources All resources All resources All resources All resources Factorities Factorit	Home > InsightX/Z > Users All users InsightX/Z - Azure Active Dire All users (Preview) Clear Settings User settings Diagnose and solve problems Activity	Services Subscriptions		und.	CSP Subscrip CSP Subscrip ConfliceTechHu ConfliceTechHu ConfliceTechHu Documentation Create an additi Create and additi Create and additi Create and additi Create and additi	ubscription Management tion Management ub Azure Subscription Man. Verifier User Subscription onal Azure Subscription M al subscriptions to scale yo Azure AP[Management] 1 cision guide - Cloud Adopt	agement Microsoft Docs ur Azure _ Microsoft Docs	ice all	Deie
SQL databases Azure Cosmos DB Virtual machines	 Sign-ins Audit logs 	Searching 1 of 9 subscrip	tions.		Resource Group:	s No results were four	nd.		crosoft.ci crosoft.ci crosoft.ci
+ Load balancers	Bulk operation results Troubleshooting + Support		Carl Payne	carl_abcsupply.onmicros		No	ZXVsupp	ily.onmi	crosoft.co
 Advisor Storage accounts 	New support request		Claire Saddington Damon Fink	claire@zxysupply.onmicr dfink@zxysupply.onmicr		No	ZXYsupp ZXYsupp		
Virtual networks		ОВ	Derrick Boyd	dboyd@zxysupply.onmic	Member	No	ZXYsupp	ly.onmi	crosoft.c

2. The **Subscriptions** screen will appear. Click on the subscription name, which may be different then what is shown below.

Home >				
Subscriptions 🖈				
+ Add				
	re role-based access control (RBAC) permissions to manage Azure reso ory. Don't see a subscription? Switch directories		u have billing access, click here	
My role ①		Status 🔘		
8 selected		✓ 3 selected		
8 selected				
Apply		A Anno contensione		
Apply	nly subscriptions selected in the global subscriptions filter ①	All Contracts		
Apply	aly subscriptions selected in the global subscriptions filter $ \bigcirc $	AL CONTRACT		
Apply Showing 1 of 9 subscriptions 🧹 Show or	nly subscriptions selected in the global subscriptions filter \bigcirc Subscription ID \uparrow_4	My role ↑↓	Current cost	Status ↑.

3. From the Subscriptions screen, click on Access control (IAM).



4. From the Access control (IAM) screen, click Add.

Account A Acces) Rafresh 🛛 🗙 Remove 🛛 🛇 Got feedback?
Overview Activity log	Check access Role assignments Roles Deny assignme	ents Classic administrators
R Access control (IAM)	Mv access	
Tags	View my level of access to this resource.	Grant access to this resource
Diagnose and solve problems	View my access	Grant access to resources by assigning a role.
Security	Check access	
Events	Review the level of access a user, group, service principal, or managed identity has to this resource. Learn more ©*	
st Management	Find ()	Add role assignments
Cost analysis	User, group, or service principal 🗸	
Cost alerts	Search by name or email address	View access to this resource
Budgets		View the role assignments that grant access to this and other resources.
Advisor recommendations		

5. Click Add role assignment.



You now need to decide on the Role type that you want to give the user. The main three are displayed at the top of the drop-down list.

Owner - Has full rights and can create and delete resource.

Contributor - Has full rights with the exception that they cannot delete resources.

Reader - Can only see what is in the subscription and cannot change anything.

6. Select the **Role** that you want to assign.

dd role assignment	
ole 🕕	
Select a role	^
Select a role	
Owner ①	
Contributor 🛈	
Reader 🛈	
AcrDelete ①	
AcrImageSigner 🕕	
AcrPull ①	

7. Select the **User**, then click **Save**.

Owner (20.	v
ssign ac	cess to 💿	
User, gr	oup, or service principal	Y
ect 🛈	É.	
Search b	oy name or email address	
	AAD DC Administrators	-
	Anna Beron aberon@zxysupply.onmicrosoft.com	Ī
	Billy Roberts billy@zxysupply.onmicrosoft.com	
	Billy Roberts broberts@zxysupply.onmicrosoft.com	
•	Carl Payne (Guest) carl@abcsupply.onmicrosoft.com	
-	Claire Saddington	
elected a	members;	
	Test User testuser@zxysupply.onmicrosoft.com Remove	

This will now give the user that you have selected, permissions to access the Sage Environment that is provisioned in the subscription.

About Execution Policies

PowerShell's execution policy is a safety feature that controls the conditions under which PowerShell loads configuration files and runs scripts. This feature helps prevent the execution of malicious scripts.

On a Windows computer you can set an execution policy for the local computer, for the current user, or for a particular session. You can also use a Group Policy setting to set execution policies for computers and users.

Execution policies for the local computer and current user are stored in the registry. You do not need to set execution policies in your PowerShell profile. The execution policy for a particular session is stored only in memory and is lost when the session is closed.

The execution policy is not a security system that restricts user actions. For example, users can easily bypass a policy by typing the script contents at the command line when they cannot run a script. Instead, the execution policy helps users to set basic rules and prevents them from violating them unintentionally.

Change the Execution Policy

To change the PowerShell execution policy on your Windows computer, use the Set-ExecutionPolicy cmdlet. The change is effective immediately. You do not need to restart PowerShell.

If you set the execution policy for the scopes LocalMachine or the CurrentUser, the change is saved in the registry and remains effective until you change it again.

If you set the execution policy for the Process scope, it is not saved in the registry. The execution policy is retained until the current process and any child processes are closed.

For example:

Set-ExecutionPolicy -ExecutionPolicy RemoteSigned -Scope CurrentUser

To learn more about PowerShell execution policies, please review the following link: <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-</u> <u>us/powershell/module/microsoft.powershell.core/about/about_execution_policies?view=powershell-7</u>

Azure PowerShell Command Line

For more advanced users, you can also execute the files to setup the subscription from the Azure PowerShell Command Line.

Azure PowerShell is a set of cmdlets for managing Azure resources directly from the PowerShell command line. Azure PowerShell is designed to make it easy to learn and get started with but provides powerful features for automation. Written in .NET Standard, Azure PowerShell works with PowerShell 5.1 on Windows, and PowerShell 6.x and higher on all platforms.

To learn more about Azure PowerShell go to:

https://docs.microsoft.com/es-es/powershell/azure/?view=azps-4.7.0

To run the PowerShell scripts from your local computer, perform the following steps:

1. Open a PowerShell session as an Administrator from your computer. Go to the **Windows** icon and enter **PowerShell** in the search field, then select **Run as Administrator**.



2. A Windows PowerShell session will appear.

3 <u>—3</u>	\times
	·



Important Note

To check the version of PowerShell on your machine, enter the following command: PS C:WINDOWS\system32> Get-Host | Select Object Version



3. First, execute the following command:

PS C:\WINDOWS\system32> Install-Module -Name PowerShellGet -Force





Important Note

If you get the following message, select Yes (Y) to allow PowerShell to install and import the NuGet provider.

4. Next, execute the following command:

PS C:\WINDOWS\system32> Install-Module -Name Az -AllowClobber -Scope CurrentUser





Important Note

If you get the Untrusted repository message, select Yes to All (A) to trust this repository.

5. Now, sign in to your Azure account using the following command:

PS C:\WINDOWS\system32> Connect-AzAccount



6. Sign in to your Microsoft Azure account.



7. Once you have signed into your Microsoft Azure account, go to the folder where you extracted the files on your computer:

PS C:\WINDOWS\system32> cd \ConfigureSageADIdentity-subscriptionId



Important Note

In the file name 'ConfigureSageADIdentity-subscriptionId', the subscriptionId will be your Azure subscription ID.

8. Finally, run the ps1 file using this command:

PS C:\WINDOWS\system32> .\ConfigureSageADIdentity-subscriptionId.ps1



 $\label{eq:constant} For additional support Installing the Azure PowerShell, review the following article:$

https://docs.microsoft.com/es-es/powershell/azure/install-az-ps?view=azps-4.7.0

Once you have run the PowerShell file, you can now setup the subscription in the Sage Provisioning Portal.

- 9. In the partner details, go to the **Subscriptions** panel. Notice that the status is showing **Pending Setup** for the new subscription.
- 10. Hover over the Actions column for the new subscription, then click on the Setup Subscription icon.



11. Review the note to complete the subscription setup, then click Accept.

sage Provisioning Portal			Q 🚺 LS Demo Partr	er - 🥐 Hap
🖬 Dashboard 👻 📴 Organisations 👻 🛔	Management 👻			
🕞 "Test Subscription" subscrip	tion setup			
Complete subscription setup Before completing the setup, make sure that you have num the nee If you need to download the script, locate Test Subscription in yo When you're ready to proceed, click 'Accept' to complete the setu	r Subscriptions list and, in the Actions column, click the Download button.		Accept	Canad
sage	8 2023 Says Software, Inc. All Skylets Reserved. Partner area Sorvice Current Status Sorvice Australiation;	About		

12. You will see that the status has changed to **Setting Up**. The setup process may take an hour to complete.

Azure subscription Id	Y Name	T	Organisation T	Region	Ŧ	Status	
Training	Test Subscription		Learning Services Demo Partner	West US 2		SettingUp	<u>r</u>
Training	- Test Subscription		Learning Services Demo Partner	West US 2		Fault	

- 13. You can use the View Logs icon to display the logs for the subscription setup. This option is useful for troubleshooting setup issues.
- 14. Once the Subscription has been setup the status will change to **Ready**.



15. You will then receive an email informing you that the subscription has been setup, and that you can now access the Sage Provisioning Portal to add customers and create sites.



Office Deployment Tool

The Office Deployment Tool (ODT) is a command-line tool that you can use to download and deploy Click-to-Run versions of Office, such as Microsoft 365 Apps for enterprise, to your client computers.

When installing Office in the Virtual Machines provisioned in Azure, you will have to use the Office Deployment Tool that can be found here: <u>https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/download/confirmation.aspx?id=49117</u>

What Microsoft 365 / Office 365 plans are supported with Sage Partner Cloud?

Microsoft licenses are necessary to install Excel on the VM with Sage Partner Cloud.

To use shared computer activation, you need an Office 365 (or Microsoft 365) plan that includes Microsoft 365 Apps and supports shared computer activation.

Shared computer activation is available for the following:

- Any plan that includes Microsoft 365 Apps for enterprise (previously named Office 365 Plus). For example, Office 365 E3 or Microsoft 365 E5.
- Any plan that includes the desktop version of Project or Visio. For example, Project Plan 3 or Visio Plan 2.
- The Microsoft 365 Business Premium plan, which includes Microsoft 365 Apps for business.

If you do not have one of these license types, you have two options:

- Upgrade your existing Microsoft license.
- Contact your Partner to purchase an Excel license via Insight SPLA.

Windows Update

When needing to run a Windows Update, you should log in as Local Admin to desktop and follow these steps:

- 1. In Windows Services enable Windows Update and start the service.
- 2. From **Server Manager**, select **Local Server** and click on the **Never check for updates** link. This redirects to Windows Settings UI and proceeds to update Windows.
- 3. After reboot, stop Windows Update and disable to avoid unwanted interruption when people are in the system

Restarting may take some time to completely load all the windows components.

Dashboard	PROPERTIES For pmq8caqmbp				
All Servers	Computer name Domain	pmglicagmbp sagepmcloud.stage.na.sage.com	Last installed updates Windows Update Last checked for updates	Never Never check for update? Never	
En IIS	Windows Finewall Remote management Remote Desktop NIC Teaming Ethernet 2	De Settings In (2) Home De Find a setting	Diplate status	Þ	- 0
	Operating system version Hardware information	Update & security M C Windows Update	Update history		

Selecting a Mode to Run Applications

In the Programs section of the home page, you have two options for running applications:

- Browser Mode
- Desktop Mode

When you select Browser mode, the Desktop Access button may be available based on the permissions granted to you by your system administrator.

Browser Mode

Browser mode, in which the applications open in a browser window, provides flexibility in that nearly all browsers and nearly all hardware is supported. You can access Sage data from your computer, tablet, phone, or even your smart TV.

However, there are limitations in terms of printing and other features. These limitations are described in the table below.

Desktop Mode

Desktop mode uses a remote desktop protocol (RDP) to connect to the virtual machine (VM) on which your Sage application is installed. This mode mimics the experience of running an application that is installed on your computer. The process of completing tasks such as printing reports and opening multiple windows at the same time is virtually identical regardless of whether the application is locally installed or in the cloud.

However, Desktop mode is supported only on computers running the Windows operating system, and it only works when you sign in to the home page using Internet Explorer.

Desktop Access

When you click the Desktop Access button, you will establish a remote desktop connection with the virtual machine on which your Sage application is installed. You are signed in to the virtual machine through your browser, but unlike when using the Browser mode, you will see the Windows Start menu and taskbar, and you can access other applications that are installed on the VM. Depending on the level of access assigned

to you by your system administrator, you may be able to install applications and perform other administrative tasks.

The table below describes some of the benefits and limitations of the Browser mode and the Desktop mode.

	Browser Mode	Desktop Mode
Best for	Anytime, anywhere use	Recreating the desktop experience of locally installed applications
Access	Computers running Windows or macOS, mobile phones and tablets, almost any device that supports a modern browser.	Limited to desktops running Remote Desktop Protocol (RDP). Only Windows-based computers are supported.
Printing	Printing is managed through the browser. Reports are created as PDFs and you can print reports to any local printer.	When the RDP connection is made, if printers are connected, the server can print directly to any connected server or local printer. Multi- part forms can be sent to print to multiple printers or to alternate trays.
File access	The data drive connection is made through the portal to exchange files between the virtual machine and your local computer. The file exchange process is like using Dropbox or OneDrive.	When the RDP connection is made, if drives are connected, the local system will be able to connect to the virtual machine and vice-versa. Files can be exchanged through Windows File Explorer.
Multi- tasking	The connection to the virtual machine is streamed through the browser so the number of active windows is limited to the screen real estate provided by the browser itself. Expanding the browser to its maximum size will provide more concurrently viewable windows. Finding individual windows can be challenging if there are several of them competing for window real estate.	Each window that opens through the RDP client appears on your local computer's task bar and functions as if it were started from a locally installed application. A small RDP icon in the task bar indicates that the process is running through RDP. Your local computer can then manage each of these windows independently, supporting multiple monitors and allowing you to easily manage multiple windows.

© 2021 The Sage Group plc or its licensors. All rights reserved. Sage, Sage logos, and Sage product and service names mentioned herein are the trademarks of The Sage Group plc or its licensors. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.